





















































































































































































































































informal mectings, but the star turns were undoubtedly
Mr. Little’s lecture on May 1oth, which filled the [.LE.E.
Lecture Theatre (about 400 present) and Mr. Duxbury’s
lecture on April sth which produced an attendance
nearly as large. Mr. Little very helpfully produced his
paper at very short notice when it was found necessary
to change the programme. Mr. Duxbury’s lecture
represented a departure from usual practice and resulted
from a suggestion made by Mr. E. S. Byng of Standard
Telephones & Cables, Ltd. Several members asked
that Mr. Duxbury's lecture should be printed, but that
was not possible as a book incorporating much of his
material was at the time in course of production. The
book has since been published. A copy can be borrowed
from the Institution library.

The session’s visits were commenced by clearing off
outstanding visits to the works of the Gramophone Co.
at Hayes. Then followed visits of about 650 members
to the headquarters of the L.C.C. Fire Brigade to inspect
the fire alarm equipment and see an impressive demon-
stration of fire fighting. After Christmas followed visits
to the battery works of Messrs. Pritchett & Gold and
E.P.S. Co., and to the lamp works of the General Electric
Co. at Hammersmith. Both visits were made in sections
to accommodate all those members who wished to take
part. With the membership of the London Centre
approaching 1,700 it is rarely possible to find an
organisation which can admit at one time all those
members who are interested. H.E. B.

North Wales Centre

The sixth meeting of the 1937-1938 Session was held
at 2.30 p.m. at the usual Shrewsbury rendezvous,
Morris’s Ballroom, Pride Hill, on Thursday, March toth,
1938.

The Chairman, Mr. H. Faulkner, presided over a
gathering of 132 members and visitors to hear Mr. C. L.
Topham, Chief Inspector, Stoke-on-Trent, give a paper
entitled ‘* Practical Transmission Measurements.” The
paper was well illustrated with a large number of slides
showing apparatus and circuits, together with typical
tests, while the actual apparatus mentioned was on view
at the meeting. Of particular interest were the father
and mother of the present noise generator which were
loaned from the Dollis Hill Research Laboratory. The
Chairman, in opening the discussion, said that a very
clear and simple paper had been heard and the author
was to be congratulated. Faraday once said that
nothing was known about anything until it could be
measured and the paper had given a simple account of
how Telephone Transmission was measured. With the
issue of noise generators to maintenance men and the
equipment of test desks with the necessary measuring
instruments now taking place, it was hoped that the
staff would co-operate to bring the District to the fore-
front with regard to the quality of its transmission.
Many members took the opportunity to discuss the
paper and the meeting finally terminated at 5.15 p.m.
with a hearty vote of thanks to Mr. Topham, seconded
in the usual manner by the assembly.

The seventh and final meeting of the session took
place at thc works of the General Electric Co., Ltd., at
Stoke, Coventry, on April 7th, 1938.

Members from all over the North Wales District
converged on Birmingham to that familiar landmark,
Telephone House, from which, at 1.15 p.m., four stream-
lined coaches bore 120 members to Coventry.

Arriving at 2.15 p.m. the party was met by the
General Manager of the Telephone Works, Mr. H. P.
Wells, and other representatives of the Company, and
conducted to the magnificent ballroom of the Magnet

Club, with its fountains, modern concealed lighting
scheme, theatre stage and cinema.

In welcoming the Chairman and members of the
North Wales Centre of the I.P.O.E.E., Mr. Wells said
that the Company was always glad to sec its customers,
particularly representatives of its biggest customer, the
Post Office Engineering Department. He then intro-
duced Mr. Malcolm, Production Manager of the
Company’s Telephone Apparatus Works, who gave an
interesting talk on ‘* Telephone Apparatus Manufacture.”

With the aid of a large plan of the works he illustrated
how the various shops and processes were arranged so
that the raw material came inatoneend and the finished
apparatus passed out at the other. The manufacturing
stages of various articles of telephone apparatus were
easily seen by means of boards bearing samples of the
article as it passed each stage of manufacture.

Among the statistics given were those that the
condenser shop turns out 2,100,000 condensers per year,
and that one of the best girl operatives engaged on
multiple-bank wiring of automatic apparatus solders
2,400 tags per hour, an item which an Executive
Engineer member of the party later tried to verify in
actual practice with his watch. An improvement in the
Performance Rating for Terminations is shortly expected
in the—Section.

At the conclusion of this excellent talk the main party
was split up into small groups of ten to a guide and
conducted round the factory to see in practice what had
been explained to them.

Two hours later, tired but still interested, the groups
rejoined at the Magnet Club to enjoy a delightful tea,
after which any questions arising out of what had been
seen were answered by Mr. Malcolm.

The Chairman of the North Wales Centre, Mr. H.
Faulkner, proposed a hearty vote of thanks to the
General Electric Company, Mr. Wells and Mr. Malcolm,
for the excellent afternoon that had been spent, a vote
that was heartily seconded by all in the approved manner
and to which Mr. Malcolm responded on behalf of the
Company.

The party finally left the Works at 5.30 p.m. for
Birmingham and their homes as far away as Bangor.

As the demand to go to this meeting was larger than
usual it was necessary to limit the party to 120, and a
second party of 120 visited the Works on April 28th,
1938.

This concluded the activities of the Centre for the
session 1937-38, the membership having increased during
the year from 255 to 355, or by 40 per cent.

S.T.S.

Scottish Centres

The Scottish I.P.O.E.E. prizes awarded by the
Co-ordinating Committee of the Scottish Region for
Workmen’s Classes in Telephony, Telegraphy and
Transmission at Edinburgh, Glasgow and Aberdeen,
have been won by the following students :

Edinburgh.

Telegraphy and Telephony 1 .. G. B. Newton

Telephony IT .. . H. Cooper
Glasgow.
Telephony I A. McPhail

Telephony II

Transmission I..
Aberdeen.

Telephony 1

W. P. Sandeman
W. P. Sandeman

R. G. Macaulay
J. Skene
**\ D. S. N. Peters
Congratulations are offered to the successful students
and it is hoped their success will encourage further study
and act as an incentive to others.

Telegraphy 1
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extensions for the chief contractor. Minor telephone
facilities have also been provided for a number of sub-
contractors.

On account of the absence of permanent roads on the
site and the fact that a 600 line privately-owned auto-
matic exchange will ultimately be installed for use when
the factory is in production, all line plant has, of
necessity, been placed overhead, and during the various
phases of the work it has been necessary to effect plant
removals at short notice owing to the rapid erection and
removal of premises and also extensive repairs on account
of damage caused by building and excavation operations.

During a good part of the work, it was frequently
impossible to take a vehicle within half a mile of a route
which necessitated adopting special measures such as
using a tractor to tow poles on a toboggan over 8 inches
or more of mud.

Scottish Region
THE EMPIRE EXHIBITION

The Empire Exhibition was opened on May 3rd, 1938,
by Their Majesties The King and Queen and the ceremony
was the culmination of months of intensive effort on the
part of the exhibition authorities, the contractors and
the exhibitors.

It is the policy of the Post Office to provide exhibits at
the various exhibitions held throughout the country,
even though many of these are of a special and local
nature, and no exception in this respect has been made
of the Empire Exhibition. In an enterprise of such
magnitude and pretention in which so many interests are
represented, the Post Office has, as the purveyor of an
important public service, played a necessary part. It
will be appreciated that in a venture of such an extent,
a telephone system is essential not only as a means of
communication between the exhibition officials, but
also as a necessary adjunct to the whole system of
the country.

It was originally intended that the telephone exchange
should form part of the Post Office display, but the fact
that the buildings for exhibitors would be completed
only shortly before the opening date, whereas the building
for the exchange was required several months before
that date to afford the required time for installing the
equipment, necessitated the separation of the exchange
from the exhibition. In addition, as the Glasgow auto
conversion work is now well in hand and the exhibition
exchange had to be C.B. manual on account of the nature
of the traffic, there was not much advantage in exhibiting
a manual exchange in an area undergoing conversion to
automatic working. Various conferences were held with
the exhibition authorities and the principal telephone
requirements were estimated. A comprehensive under-
ground scheme was prepared for auxiliary M.D.F.’s
fitted in all the main buildings to provide flexibility.
As the work progressed, the layout of proposed buildings
was revised and additional buildings were added, all
of which involved changes in the underground scheme
as originally proposed.

The engineering work commenced on September 1st,
1937, and was completed in time for the opening of the
physical exhibition exchange. As the construction of
roads progressed, every opportunity was taken to
provide all the ducts for the necessary crossings. In all,
some eight miles of underground cables of all sizes were
provided.

Meanwhile, the design of the exchange equipment had
been put in hand some 12 months before the opening
date of the exhibition and data was supplied by the
Telephone Manager, Glasgow, on May 12th, 1937.
Because of the type of traffic likely to be obtained
equipment of the C.B. No. 10 type was decided upon.

Normally this type of equipment would be installed by
the Telephone Manager's staff but, owing to the very
heavy programme of work in the Region, it was felt that
the work could not be undertaken without causing
serious delay in other directions and a recommendation
was made to the Engineer-in-Chief that the work be
carried out by contract. This was agreed, and the Auto-
matic Telephone and Electric Co. of Liverpool undertook
the work. Advance copies of the complete Specification
were supplied to the Contractor on June 23rd, 1937, and
the Regional Contract Order was placed on June 3oth.
The Contractor commenced installation of the equipment
on December 21st, 1937, and the exchange was ready
for service on March 19th, 1938.

To provide the telephone service required by Building
Contractors and the Administration during the erection
of the buildings, Exhibition exchange was opened
hypothetically on Ibrox exchange on January 6th, 1938.

The physical exhibition exchange was opened on
April 25th, 1938,and up to this date the actual telephone
requirements had not been clearly defined. During
this week, however, the number of exchange lines
increased from 100 to approximately 500, all requiring
service at once. During the first two weeks the busy
hour calling rate was between 3 and 4, which put a great
strain both on the operating staff and the equipment.

Some details of the exchange and the communication
system are given in the following table.

Exhibition Exchange
Switch Sections, C.B. No. 10 15 A-positions
5 B-positions
1 T & P.U. position

Multiple (Subs.) 960
Multiple (Juncs.) 200
Answering Jacks 960

L. & C. O. Relays 920
Monitors Desk 2 positions
C.T.I. Equipment 62

Subs. Apparatus 15 Switchboards
520 D.E.L’s (at May 20th)
Call Offices 69
Junctions go Outgoing (at
114 Incoming May

28 Bothway 20th)
2 Batteries 24 V 300 Ah.
Worked charge /discharge
1 Motor Generator

Police and Fire Alarm System.
One switchboard PA 150 TD 10 lines with external
extensions to police and ambulance. 15 pillars in
exhibition grounds for use by public and Police.

Private Exchange.
One 50-line switchboard with lines to each car park
for traffic control.
“ TIM ” service was provided from 7 points in the
various pavilions, the telephones being used for this
service exclusively.

South Wales

SUBAQUEOUS CABLE AT MILFORD HAVEN

A subaqueous cable, recently laid across the Milford
Haven, between Hobbs Point and Neyland, a distance
of approximately half a mile, represents a further link
in the system of telecommunications for west Wales.
The cable forms part of the trunk system connecting
Milford and Carmarthen (with spurs to Tenby, Pembroke
and Pembroke Dock), and is of the P.C.Q.T. typec,
138/20 and 4/40 S/pairs with single armouring and
having an approximate overall diameter of 4 in.

The normal means of transport across the Haven is
by steam ferry. For the purposes of cabling it was
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